City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPU - 3713
Flow Monitoring Goods and Services
Addendum 
Dated 06/30/17

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SPU - 3713, titled “Flow Monitoring Goods and Services” released on 5/18/17.  The due date and time for responses has changed to 7/10/17 @4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	N/A
	6/21/17
	
	In order to answer all questions thoroughly, the City has moved the proposal due date to 7/10/17.
	The proposal due date has changed to 7/10/17 at 4 PM Pacific.

	2
	6/8/17
	6/22/17
	A correction will be made that SPU-Owned ADS meters are Triton+, not FlowShark Triton+.


	Correct. Revised as noted:
	Purpose:

The objective of Seattle Public Utilities (SPU)’s contract scope of work is to provide flow and precipitation monitoring goods and services, including services that are needed on an annual basis as well as shorter-term services whose need may arise from time to time.  Most if not all the services will be in support of SPU’s Drainage and Wastewater (DWW) System.  Requirements include knowledge and willingness to use ADS Triton + monitors already purchased by the City and Flowworks web-based data warehouse.



	3
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 3 - Min Quals 3.iv: A correction will be made that data must be uploaded to FlowWorks every 15 minutes for the NDPDES sites, and every 12 hours for the temporary flow monitoring (TFM) sites. 


	Correct. Revised as noted:
	iv.  The vendor must support the web-based system Flowworks to view flow monitoring data in near-real time.   Near-real time in this context means that data is refreshed from connected meters every 15 minutes for daily review sites and 12 hours for weekly review sites, and uploaded from manual meters on a schedule mutually agreed upon by vendor and the City.  System must provide event alarming and notifications of equipment or communication failures.  The system must be accessible to anyone with appropriate password and internet access and have ability to email or text alarm event notifications.


	4
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	After reading RFP SPU 3713 & the associated documents, and attending the pre-bid conference on May 30th, please confirm our understanding that:

a. The main purpose of RFP SPU 3713 is to provide flow monitoring services for SPU’s regulated NPDES permitted sites, using SPU-owned ADS Triton+ flowmeters/sensors/installation hardware.

b. There will be daily review of the data M-F, and 24/7/365 “on-call” scrubbing of alarms (before sending a notice to the SPU Operations group).

c. Data will be uploaded to FlowWorks, and the hosting will be paid by SPU through a separate SPU-FlowWorks contract. 

d. A separate RFP will be forthcoming for Temporary Flow Monitoring (TFM) projects to augment the temp requirements in this RFP.  Pricing in this bid sheet for this RFP can also be used for TFM projects at non-regulated sites using SPU-owned equipment, with most likely weekly review of data and no scrubbing of alarms, and vendors uploading data to a web-hosted system of their choice. 
	Correct for a, b, and c.  
d. A separate RFP will be forthcoming for Temporary Flow Monitoring (TFM) projects to augment the temp requirements in this RFP.  Pricing in this bid sheet for this RFP can also be used for TFM projects at non-regulated sites using SPU-owned equipment, with most likely weekly review of data and no scrubbing of alarms, and vendors uploading data to a web-hosted system of the SPU project manager’s choice. 


	

	5
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Given item # 1 above, please confirm that the following applies to the bid sheet items:

a. Field service items # 11-14 & 16 are for SPU-owned equipment only, there is no price in the bid sheet in this RFP for providing monthly fields services using vendor-owned equipment. 

b. The “daily review” of data in bid items # 18-20 is for the NPDES sites, and the “24/7 on-call” in items # 18 & 19 is 24/7/365 scrubbing of alarms before the vendor sends a message to the SPU Operations group.

c. SPU will pay for web hosting of regulated NPDES sites through a separate contract with FlowWorks, and bid item # 23 is for data hosting on a system of the vendor’s choice for TFM projects of non-regulated sites. 
	a.  Correct, additional costs for vender equipment service/leasing will be covered under item 31.
b. Correct

c. SPU will pay for web hosting of regulated NPDES sites through a separate contract with FlowWorks, and bid item # 23 is for data hosting on a system of the SPU project manager’s choice for TFM projects of non-regulated sites.
	

	6
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 3 - Min Quals 3.v: Says must monitor 24/7 and respond within 72 hrs for non-functioning meters. Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that since the intent of this RFP is for permanent NPDES sites, the 72 hour data gap is a maximum value, and gaps should be kept to <24 hours. 
	Correct
	

	7
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 3 - Min Quals 3.vii: Says vendor must be able to install and operate intrinsically safe flow monitoring instruments. Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that field crews must be IS certified.
	Correct
	

	8
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 - Specs & SOW - Spec 5 - Field management and Spec 9 – Project Management: First paragraph of Spec 5 says need to have “locally-based” dedicated field administrator, and first paragraph of Spec 9 says need to have a dedicated Project Manager. Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that the intent is that the vendor needs to have a local office within 2 hours of SPU, and that we can have a Project Manager that is our main POC, with separate field administrators for the NPDES regulated sites and the TFM non-regulated sites.
	Correct, the vendor can have multiple field administrators as long as they are locally-based (within 2 hours of SPU).
	

	9
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 - Specs & SOW - Spec 5.4 – Additional Flaggers/traffic control personnel:  This spec says “If additional flaggers and/or staff are required…”, vendor reimbursed by the city. Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that “additional staff” can include when police presence is required. 
	Correct, spec says “ If police presence is required for traffic control, the vendor shall submit invoices and be reimbursed by the City.”
	

	10
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 - Specs & SOW - Spec 5.5 – Unscheduled Service: Asks for 72 hour maximum repair response time to sites in disrepair or having communication issues. Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that since this RFP is for permanent NPDES sites, the 72 hours begins at the start of the data gap. 
	Correct
	

	11
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 6.1 – Data Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC): Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that the items in this spec are covered by bid items # 18-22. Please also confirm that since depth-only sites have no velocity, the level/velocity Scattergraph review requirement in “review of monitoring data” is only for flow-meter sites, not for depth-only sites. 
	Correct
	

	12
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 6.2 – QA/QC of rain data: Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that the items in this spec are covered by bid item # 20.
	Correct
	

	13
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 6.5: Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that the 24/7 “Filtering”, “Response” and “Preliminary Reporting” are covered by the “24/7 on call” in Bid items # 18 & 19 (and that bid items 18 & 19 are for permanent sites and not for temporary sites, so even though there is a 24/7 requirement for on-call Mon-Sun, there is daily review of data only on Mon-Fri).
	Correct.  

If a project manager wants a higher level of service for a temporary site, they can use bid items 18 and 19.
	

	14
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW – Spec 7 – Data Delivery: Pre the pre-bid conference, please confirm the vendor use any web-based data delivery system for TFM sites, but must use FlowWorks for the NPDES regulated sites. 
	NPDES (permanent) locations must use Flowworks.  The SPU project manager will select the data delivery system for their temporary projects.
	

	15
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 8 Uptime Expectations - Spec 8.3 Staffing: Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that for preventing monitor outages, the quantity of personnel required to meet a “sufficient number of permanent field service crews”, is left to the judgement of the management of the flow service provider.


	Correct 
	

	16
	6/8/17
	6/27/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW  - Spec 9.1 Project Management & Bit Items # 24 & 25: Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that the 2 operations progress meetings with the project manager (bid item # 24) are to be in person, but the 5-15 hours/mo of data review with data analysts/engineers (bid item # 25) can be via conference call or Web Ex.
	Project manager meetings (bid item 24) are to be in person.  Data review meetings (bid item 25) requires at least one vendor employee to be in person.
	

	17
	6/8/17
	
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW  - Spec 12.1 – Equipment Intrinsic Safety rating: Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that since this RFP is for permanent NPDES sites using ADS Triton+ flowmeters  that have an Intrinsically Safe (IS) equipment rating, and that IS ratings will be reviewed by SPU for temp applications and will be detailed in the forthcoming RFP for TFM projects.
	Any flow monitor in SPU system needs to be IS.  Details of the any other RFPs will be addressed by that RFP team.
	

	18
	6/8/17
	
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW  - Spec 12.5 batteries/consumables and Spec 12.7 Spares: Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that the vendor will pay for all batteries/consumables and SPU will pay for all spare sensors, The vendor will be required to carry a 10% spares inventory, and must get SPU approval before purchasing any spare sensors.
	Correct, batteries and other consumables will be covered under hardware bid item 30.
	

	19
	6/8/17
	6/30/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec Section 17 Restrictions - Contract Term: Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that after the 1st year, the 6ea 1-year extensions will be processed as an option with the intent of being automatic, and that SPU is going to carefully track intents & affidavits to be sure all prevailing wage requirements are being paid before issuing next year’s renewal.
	Correct
	

	20
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid item # 3 – Rain gauges installs: Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that rain gauges are assumed to be standard temporary installations with battery/rain gauge/tipping bucket only. If additional installation items are required such conduit, mounting poles, trenching, etc. installation of those item  will be priced as T&M at the hourly rates found in bid items # 33-36. 
	Correct
	

	21
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid Items # 11-14 & 16 – Monthly Field Services for battery/hard-wired flow & depth meters and rain gauges. Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that these items apply to either NPDES sites or TFM sites using SPU-owned ADS equipment, but the estimated quantities in bid items #11-14 are for permanent NPDES sites, they do not include any TFM sites. In addition, this RFP does not include monthly field service prices for vendor-owned equipment, only SPU-owned ADS equipment. 
	Correct, these bid items can be used for both permanent NPDES monitoring and temporary monitoring owned by SPU.  The estimated quantity is for permanent only.  This RFP does include leasing.  Any monthly leasing costs will be covered under bid item #31.
	

	22
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid Item #23: Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that this bid item is for web-hosting of data on systems besides FlowWorks for TFM sites, and that FlowWorks is required for use on NPDES sites, with the hosting cost on FlowWorks for the NPDES sites being paid for by SPU through a SPU-FlowWorks sub-agreement contract. 
	Correct 
	

	23
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 12 Equipment: Per pre-bid conference, please confirm that it is the intention of the City to have the vendor chosen to monitor the NPDES permanent sites to warehouse all SPU-owned ADS equipment, which can then be lent out to “other companies”/flow service providers.
	Correct 
	

	24
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 12.9: Per the pre-bid conference, please confirm that the vendor is responsible for the SIM cost of SPU-owned equipment, and is captured by bid sheet items # 11-14 & 16.
	Correct
	

	25
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW – Spec 7.1 Data collection & Spec 8 Uptime Expectations and Bid Items # 18-22: Spec 7.1 calls for 95% minimum uptime and Spec 8 calls for a maximum 72 data gap, which are both possible to be achieved with the daily data review M-F called out in bid items # 18-20. Bid items # 21-22 call out for weekly data review, so it is possible that longer than a 72 data gap will exist, and less than 95% uptime will be achieved. Was it your intention to have the max 72 hour data gap in Spec 7.1 and the 95% minimum uptime in Spec 8 be associated with bid items # 18-20 for NDPES sites, and different data gap and uptime specs will be created for bid items # 21-22 for use with TFM sites? 
	SPU expects to have 95% of the sites connecting to Flowowrks or any other web-based hosting site at any given time.

The goal of monitoring is to have outages of no more than 24 hours.  Daily reviewed sites (bid items 18-20) shouldn’t have gaps of greater than 72 hours and weekly reviewed sites (bid items 21-22) shouldn’t have gaps greater than 10 days.  
Section 8.1 revised as noted.  Uptime only applies to daily review sites (bid item 18-20)
	8.1 Monitoring uptime defined:  The vendor shall be expected to provide at least 95% of the possible data points each calendar month for daily review sites only (number of data points recorded divided by the total number of possible data points that could be recorded in a month at a five-minute time-step.)



	26
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Spec 1.2 - Site Reports: For the bullet about the primary and 2 secondary rain gauges, will SPU identify the 2ea secondary gauge sites, or does the vendor need to do that? 
	SPU will identify primary, secondary, and tertiary rain gauges associated with each flow/depth site.
	

	27
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW  - Spec 12.5 Equipment: Are the batteries/consumables cost the vendor is responsible for supposed to be covered in field service Bid items # 11-14 & 16? 
	Refer to question 18.
	

	28
	6/8/17
	
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW  - Spec 12.5-12.7 Equipment: 

a. The batteries/consumables, monitor repair and spares mentioned in these 3 spec sections all refer to “Vendor”, is that the warehousing vendor or the “other companies” too? 

b. If just the warehousing vendor, is the warehousing vendor responsible for “other companies” breaking meters, sensors, etc.? 
	Revised as noted:
a.  See revision for 12.5 and 12.6.  12.7 refers to the vendor.

b. See revision for monitor repair.  Sensors will be purchased by the warehousing vendor and paid for under equipment (bid item 30).
	12.5 Batteries and other consumables.  Purchase and appropriate disposal of batteries and other consumables such as dessicants are a vendor or other company responsibility, whoever is under contract to conduct service for that monitor.  Battery disposal shall be in accordance with responsible environmental practices.
12.6 Monitor repair:  The vendor or other company, whoever is under contract to conduct service for that monitor, is responsible for repairing all broken monitors as part of field service.  Any repairs on intrinsically safe flow monitoring equipment require a technician certified to work on intrinsically safe equipment.  If repairs on intrinsically safe equipment are made with a non-certified technician, the equipment’s intrinsically safety rating is compromised and the vendor will be responsible for replacing the compromised equipment.  The vendor shall supply the City with proof that the technician repairing equipment is certified to work on intrinsically safe equipment.


	29
	6/8/17
	6/22/17
	Section 5 – Specs & SOW - Section 17 – Restrictions – Trial Period and Right to Award to Next Low Vendor: This section says city reserves right to award to “next lowest bidder”, yet Section 8 – Evaluation says price is 35% of the evaluation criteria. Is this RFP a low price bid?


	The Term is revised as follows:
	Trial Period and Right to Award to Next Highest ranked Proposer: A ninety (90) day trial period shall apply to contract(s) awarded as a result of this solicitation.  During the trial period, the vendor(s) must perform in accordance with all terms and conditions of the contract.  Failure to perform during this trial period may cause the immediate cancellation of the contract.  If dispute or discrepancy as to the acceptability of product or service occurs, the City’s decision shall prevail.  The City agrees to pay only for authorized orders received up to the date of termination.  If the contract is terminated within the trial period, the City reserves the option to award the contract to the next highest ranked proposer by mutual agreement with such Vendor.  Any new award will be for the remainder of the contract and will also be subject to this trial period.  



	30
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid Items # 1-3 & 5-6 & 15: These specs for installation and manual download say 1-2 person crews and also that flagging is included, but Spec 5.4 says beyond 2 person crew if flaggers are required the vendor will be reimbursed by the city. 2-person crews cannot do flagging, 1 is in manhole and one is safety watcher, so doesn’t flagging need to be removed from these bid items per spec 5.4? 
	Different companies manage installations differently so they might be able to include flagging in this bid item.  If not, 5.4 allows additional personnel to using bid item 33.

Also, bid item 2 and 15 don’t require confined space so I imagine one person could work topside and the other could flag.
	

	31
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid Item # 8: Does the “refurbish” of monitoring equipment include installing a new battery? 
	Yes.
	

	32
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid Items # 13 & 14 – Monthly Field Services for battery/hard-wired depth meters. Can the depth-only sites use a depth-only meter that is installed top-side, or does the depth sensor need to be installed in the flow?
	Bid items 13 and 14 do not include confined space to these bid items assume top site service.
	

	33
	6/8/17
	6/28/17
	Bid Items # 30 & 31. ADS allows purchase of equipment on Storefront (bid item # 30), but not rentals (Bid item # 31). Are the rentals in bid item # 31 for SPU or for “other companies”?
	Bid item 31 is for extra costs to the vendor for leasing equipment.  Bid item 31 isn’t specific to leasing ADS equipment. The rentals are for the vendor if all ADS owned equipment is used and more equipment is needed for a project.
	

	34
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	Is 12 Hour near real time data the standard or do you require a more frequent upload interval during storm events ?
	See question # 3 for updated time requirements.  Time requirements are the same for dry and wet weather.
	

	35
	6/9/17
	6/30/17
	ADS parts and equipment are publicly sold using their online store, will this suffice having a authorized letter from ADS?
	The purchase parts and equipment, SPU would need to sign a quote that authorizes the purchase.  SPU would then need the ADS invoice to pay for the equipment under bid item 30.
	

	36
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	Are all the site documents, photos, reports and drawings stored on the existing FlowWorks platform ?
	Yes, but that feature is owned by ADS and won’t be available.
	

	37
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	Has the city standardized on a field velocity profiling method, and the equipment in which to measure this, for example 9 point profile, t-section etc .
	The city does not have the equipment to measure velocity.  The vendor is responsible in supplying all equipment used to service sites.  The vendor selected will have experience on velocity profiling.
	

	38
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	Is the City using redundant or single bucket rain gauges ?
	Single bucket rain gauges.
	

	39
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	Has the city developed a policy on installing antennas, for example in the roadway, on the manhole lid, etc .
	No, the city doesn’t have a policy for installing antennas.
	

	40
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	As per 6.3, can we apply our own data scrubbing model for cleaning questionable data, or do we need to utilize the tools within FlowWorks ?
	Flowworks doesn’t have scrubbing functionality.
	

	41
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	As per 6.5 Dry weather alarming, 30 minutes is stated as the minimum alarm response time, however 12 hrs is stated as the regular upload interval ? Does the equipment automatically wake up and send the alarm data real time , and if so, does the correlation between dry and wet weather alarm occur within the monitor or at the server end ? And . . if so do the ring gauge alas upload near real time to avoid false DWO alarms ?
	See question # 3 for updated time requirements.  The equipment is set to send flowworks data every 15 minutes.  Alarms are set up in flowworks and can use the rain data to distinguish between wet and dry alarms.
	

	42
	6/9/17
	6/30/17
	As per 7. Data Delivery, does the city expect the vendor to supply a secondary DMS to FlowWorks, of does this specifically outline the flow works system?
	The vendor must use flowworks for permanent NPDES monitoring.  For temporary monitoring, Flowworks or a different DMS can be used as approved by the SPU project manager.  
	

	43
	6/9/17
	6/30/17
	As per 8.3, does the city have any objection to the vendor installing maintenance free items, for example replacing dry desiccant with a maintenance free bellows systems etc  . . 
	The city is ok with installing maintenance free items as long as it doesn’t damage city owned equipment.
	

	44
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	As per 8.3, in the event a site does not communicate due to a signal or cellular service problem, does the city have an issue with the vendor installing another IS technology compatible with the DMS to monitor the site, and keep the vendor within the contract metrics?
	It seems acceptable, but would need to be approved by the city before any alterations were made.
	

	45
	6/9/17
	6/28/17
	As per 8.3, The city asks for a redundant verification method, does this include installation of a redundant technology solution, that is IS ?
	This refers to multiple sensors with one data logger.
	

	46
	6/9/17
	6/30/17
	As per 12.6 equipment repair, we understand that only the factory is typically authorized to repair equipment, and that any new installation of equipment must per factory certified, I was unaware that we are allowed to physically repair in the filed , in or near the hazardous area, is this allowed, and if it which company certifies the technician, ie. CE, Intertek, Sira etc . . 
	The vendor is responsible in obtaining a certified IS technician.   The city requires that the monitor work and the IS rating not be voided.  It is up to the vendor how they want to accomplish repairs keeping the city requirements.
	

	47
	6/12/2017
	6/28/17
	Bid Items 11-14: ADS currently monitors 81 NPDES sites, 34 flow sites and 47 depth sites, with no difference in equipment configuration, both the flow sites and depth sites have Triton+ flowmeters and model CS4 sensors, and most of the sites also have model CS5 sensors. Bid items # 11 & 12 have a combined 15-25 battery and hard-wired power flow sites, so less flow sites than ADS currently monitors. Bid items # 13 & 14 have a combined 60-80 battery and hard-wired power flow sites, so more depth sites than ADS currently monitors, and they also require confined space entry. 

a. Upon award of the RFP 3713 contract, does SPU anticipate reducing the 34 NPDES flow sites and increasing the 47 NPDES depth sites currently being monitored? 

b. Were bid items 13 & 14 meant to be for sites with Triton+ flow meters and model CS4 & CS5 sensors, or were they meant to be for sites that had “top-side” installed depth only meters such as the ADS ECHO, that require no confined space entry? 

c. If Bid items 13 & 14 were meant for Triton+ flow meters and model CS4 & CS5 sensors with confined space entry, will you be adding a bid item for “top-side” installed battery powered depth meters such as the ADS ECHO that do not need confined space entry? (FYI, the ECHO meter is only battery powered, there is no hard-wired power version). 


	a. the bid item quantity is an estimate

b.  Bid items 13 and 14 are intended for equipment that does not require confined space entry.

c.  Bid items 13 and 14 are top side only installations that do not require confined space.  Bid items 11 and 12 are for sites that require confined space.


	

	48
	6/12/2017
	6/22/17
	WMBE Inclusion Plan: Section 2 – Solicitation Objectives on page 2 of the RFP file and Section 6 – Instructions and Information on page 22 mentions the city’s intention to obtain significant WMBE participation, with Section 6 further specifying that “A Woman and Minority Inclusion Plan is a mandatory submittal with your RFP response, and is provided for you in the Submittal Instruction section of this RFP document.” However, there is no Minority Inclusion Plan in the submittal section, only the following 6 items in the checklist on page 25: Cover Sheet, Legal Name, Minimum Qualifications Page, Vendor Questionnaire, Technical Response and Offer Sheet. Was a WMBE Inclusion Plan meant to be a mandatory submittal of our RFP response? 


	Section 2 is revised to read as follows:

Also, the Women and Minority Opportunities information is revised as follows:
	2. Solicitation Objectives.

The City expects to achieve the following outcomes through a new blanket contract.

The objective of this solicitation is to provide a skilled and responsive vendor with experience in flow and precipitation monitoring goods and services through a successful contract.  The City desires to get the best value for our rate payers while collecting quality data needed to fulfill Ecology requirements.  
Women and Minority Opportunities: The City intends to provide the maximum practicable opportunity for successful participation of minority and women owned firms, given that such businesses are underrepresented.  The City requires all Proposers agree to SMC Chapter 20.42, and will require proposals with meaningful subcontracting opportunities to also supply a plan for including minority and women owned firms.  

No Woman and Minority Inclusion Plan is required to provide with your RFP response.
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